## BY-LAWS OF THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE OF THE HEART OF TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

## Article I Name of Committee

#### Section 1:

The name of this Committee shall be the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments.

#### Article II Objective

#### Section 1:

The creation of this Committee is authorized by the Heart of Texas Council of Governments, under Section 391.005, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated and Article II of the Articles of Association.

#### Section 2:

The purposes of the Committee shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- A. To organize and develop, with the assistance of the Criminal Justice Coordinator, a regional planning program which brings together criminal justice professionals, community leaders, civic and professional organizations, and concerned citizens in a cooperative effort to provide effective criminal justice programs, services, and training.
- B. To assist in the development of annual criminal justice plans which address the needs of the region and assist in coordinating existing and planned criminal justice programs and training.
- C. To offer technical assistance to interested parties in developing and implementing criminal justice programs and training.
- D. To provide information on available criminal justice programs, training, pertinent legislation, and research, which is relevant to the region.
- E. To review and comment on criminal justice applications in the region seeking state or federal funding.

Section 3:

The responsibilities of the Committee shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- A. To advise the Heart of Texas Council of Governments Board of Directors and Executive Committee on all appropriate matters relating to criminal justice planning.
- B. To review and comment on an annual regional criminal justice plan.
- C. To set priorities for criminal justice planning in the region.
- D. To evaluate existing criminal justice programs seeking continuation funding as to program achievements and compliance, and need.
- E. To function as a technical assistance forum, available to regional criminal justice agencies on request.

# Section 4:

This Committee shall have no legislative powers; all final authority is vested in the Executive Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments.

# Article III

## Membership

## Section 1:

- A. Committee membership shall consist of between twelve and eighteen members representing the following multi-disciplinary areas: law enforcement, prosecution/ courts, victim services, nonprofit organizations, education, substance abuse prevention, juvenile justice, mental health, and interested citizens.
- B. All members are appointed by the Executive Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair will require final approval of the HOTCOG Executive Committee.

## Section 2:

- A. All members shall be appointed for a one-year term. Members may be reappointed.
- B. Any vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired term.
- C. Terms of service shall begin in January.

# Section 3:

There shall be no discrimination in any respect in selection of members or any activity of the Committee due to age, sex, race, religion, handicap, or political creed.

## Section 4:

Any form of inappropriate communication between a committee member and an applicant agency's representative, employee, or contractor in which the application or the scoring of the application is discussed is prohibited. Such inappropriate communication should immediately be reported to the COG Criminal Justice Planner. Such inappropriate communication may result in an applicant agency being ineligible for future funding consideration. Committee members found to have engaged in such inappropriate communication may be removed from the committee.

#### Article IV Officers

## Section 1:

The officers of the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee shall be a chair and a vice chair. The officers of the Committee will be elected by a majority vote of the Committee.

## Section 2:

The chair shall preside at all meetings of the Committee. The chair may represent the Committee in presentations to the Executive Committee. The vice chair shall preside in the absence of the chair. In the absence of both the chair and the vice chair, the Committee shall designate a member to preside in their absence during the meeting.

## Section 3:

The secretary shall be the Criminal Justice Coordinator as assigned by the Executive Director of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments. The secretary shall keep the minutes of all Committee meetings and shall perform such other duties as may be required by the Executive Director or the Committee.

# Article V Meetings

# Section 1:

This Committee shall meet at least twice annually and at other times as the chair deems necessary or upon request of the chair.

# Section 2:

Notices of the meeting shall meet the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act. Notices of any special called meetings or emergency meetings shall meet the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act.

# Section 3:

A quorum at any Committee meeting shall be a simple majority (51%) of the Committee. An act of majority of the members, in a meeting at which a quorum is present, shall be the act of the Committee.

## Section 4:

Two unexcused absences may terminate membership on the Committee.

# Article VI Parliamentary Authority

## Section 1:

Robert's Rules of Order will be used as a guide for conducting all meetings.

# Article VII Amendments to By-Laws

## Section 1:

- A. The by-laws of this Committee may be altered, amended, or repealed and new bylaws be adopted by two-thirds vote of the Committee subject to approval of the Executive Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments.
- B. The by-laws of this Committee may be altered, amended, or repealed and new bylaws be adopted by the action of the Executive Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments.

The By-Laws of the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments are hereby accepted and passed by the Committee on this 28th day of March, 2013.

Patsy Morton, Chair Criminal Justice Advisory Committee

ATTEST:

Jim Newkam, Vice-Chair Criminal Justice Advisory Committee

The By-Laws of the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments are hereby accepted and passed by the Executive Committee of the Heart of Texas Council of Governments on this 28th day of March, 2013.

Steve Sharp, President Judge, Falls County

ATTEST:

Kay Taylor, Vice-President Co. Treasurer, Freestone County